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Scaffolding

Welder Working from Scaffolding
During Fatal Fall, Judge Rules

A steel company was violating scaffolding standards
when a welder fell to his death on a Fort Bliss, Texas,
hospital construction project, a workplace safety judge
ruled.

The welder was working from a temporary platform
he had built Feb. 24, 2015, when his synthetic lanyard
melted through and he fell 33 feet from the sixth to the
fourth floor. No one witnessed the accident and deter-
mined how the lanyard, part of his personal fall arrest
system, melted. Investigators found he was probably
preheating welds on the exterior column, to which he
had secured his lanyard, according to the decision.

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration
issued a three-item serious citation to Midwest Steel,
Inc., a steel-erection subcontractor that had hired weld-
ers to work on the hospital, and the Secretary of Labor
proposed $18,900 in penalties.

The temporary platform was subject to OSHA’s scaf-
folding regulations because it plainly fit within the defi-
nition of a scaffold, Patrick Augustine, an Occupational
Safety and Health Review Commission administrative
law judge, ruled (Sec’y of Labor v. Midwest Steel, Inc.,
OSHRCJ, No. 15-1471, 10/16/17).

Augustine affirmed violations of 29 C.F.R.
1926.451(a)(6), for failing to have a qualified person de-
sign scaffolds; 29 C.F.R. 1926.451(f)(3), for failing to in-
spect scaffolds before each shift; and 29 CFR
1926.451(f)(7), for failing to have a trained and experi-
enced employee erect, move, dismantle, or alter scaf-
folds. He assessed $12,600 in penalties.

The commission declined to review the decision,
which became a final order Oct. 16. It is an independent
federal agency provides trial and appellate review of
contested citations and penalties resulting from inspec-
tions.

Midwest won’t petition a federal appeals court to re-
view the decision, according to Glenn Fuerth, co-chair
of the Architects & Engineers Liability practice at Wil-
son Elser Moskowitz, Edelman & Dicker, LLP.

Temporary Platform Is Scaffolding The company ar-
gued that the platform wasn’t a scaffold, and therefore
it didn’t violate the scaffolding standards, because it
was permanently attached to an exterior column by a
weld.

Augustine ruled that the platform in this case fell
within the ‘‘clear and unambiguous’’ definition of a
scaffold.

A scaffold is ‘‘any temporary elevated platform (sup-
ported or suspended) and its supporting structure (in-
cluding points of anchorage), used for supporting em-
ployees or materials or both,’’ according to the OSHA
definition.

Although he welded the platform into place, the
welder, who died in the accident, would move it to a
new location when he finished splicing, Augustine
wrote.

Attorney Says Workers Trained ‘‘The ruling is consis-
tent with the broad statutory language contained in the
standard of what constitutes a scaffold,’’ Fuerth told
Bloomberg Environment Oct. 31. ‘‘I do not think that
the ruling will have an impact on the industry as the
work platform scaffold has been in use for decades.’’

But Fuerth said he believes the decision was flawed
in two ways.

‘‘First, all of the workers had OSHA 30-hour training
which includes scaffolds and the decision is silent as to
the extent of the training required,’’ Fuerth, who is
based in Wilson Elser’s New York office, said. ‘‘Second,
the scaffold standard has specific requirements for vari-
ous types of scaffolds and this work platform scaffold
came within the catch-all subsection of the standard
that required 100 percent tie off.’’

‘‘As the ALJ dismissed the citation asserting that the
tie off was defective, the work platform was thus in
compliance with the standard,’’ he said.

Augustine found the Labor Department failed to
show Midwest violated 29 C.F.R. 1926.95(c), because
the synthetic lanyard was not safely designed and con-
structed for the work performed. The agency had al-
leged this as an alternative to the general duty clause
violation.

Fall Hazard Violation Vacated Midwest didn’t violate
section 5(a)(1) of the Occupational Safety and Health
Act—the general duty clause—by exposing the employ-
ees to fall hazards, Augustine wrote.

The Labor Department didn’t establish that either the
industry or Midwest recognized the hazardous
condition—the 180 degree heat limitation for using syn-
thetic lanyards set forth in a 2012 American National
Standards Institute standard.

ANSI develops voluntary national consensus stan-
dards to establish accepted industry practices.
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The Department of Labor, Office of the Solicitor, Dal-
las, represented the secretary.

BY LARS-ERIC HEDBERG

To contact the reporter on this story: Lars-Eric Hed-
berg in Washington at lhedberg@bna.com

To contact the editor responsible for this story: Ra-
chael Daigle at rdaigle@bna.com

The decision of the Occupational Safety and Health
Review Commission administrative law judge in Sec-
retary of Labor v. Midwest Steel, Inc. is available at
http://src.bna.com/tLA.
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